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 Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission (RTC)  
Highway 9 - San Lorenzo Valley Complete Streets Corridor Plan 

Professional Services Request for Proposals (RFP) 
 

Questions and Answers 
Reflects all questions received through January 5, 2017. 

 
Questions Regarding Scope of Work 
 
1. Task 2.3: This task mentions finalizing goals, objectives and criteria based on “concurrence 

from governing boards.” Would you like for the consultant to attend and/or present at these 
meetings of the governing boards? (This is an example of the issue raised in the next 
question.) 
A: The consultant team and staff would determine together if it is essential for the consultant 
to present the goals, objectives, and evaluation criteria at one governing board meeting. The 
complexity of the proposed evaluation criteria may determine if the consultant needs to 
present the information. 
 

2. Task 2.9: This task mentions that the consultant should present “at a minimum of 3 
meetings.” However, could you give a better sense of the total number of public and/or 
stakeholder meetings you expect or envision as part of this effort? And do you intend for 
RTC staff or for the consultant to present at most of the meetings? The task description isn’t 
entirely clear about this. 

   
A: RTC staff will be the lead for soliciting public input and will present information at most 
of the meetings. While there will be several community stakeholder meetings, public 
workshops, technical advisory team, outreach at community groups and events such as 
farmers markets and information and action items at RTC and Board of Supervisors 
meetings, we do not expect the consultant to participate in most of those meetings.  
 
The consultant team is only expected to present in-person at two community workshops and 
board meetings on the draft and possibly final plan. The consultant team should be available 
by phone for technical advisory team meetings.  
 
It would be helpful for the cost proposal to include information on the cost for attending 
meetings in person, especially in the event that we need the consultant to participate in more 
meetings.  
 
We will be depending on the consultant to develop graphics for the plan, which would also 
be used during public outreach.  
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3. Tasks 2.7 and 2.8: Are there any plans out there that you would hold up as a model complete 
streets corridor plan that you would hold up as a shining example of these plans?  
 
A: As far as how the plan is organized, there is not a specific model plan that RTC staff 
would point to. Caltrans staff has pointed to the complete streets planning effort that was 
done for the Highway 68 Pacific Grove Corridor Study in Monterey County. The Monterey 
Bay Area Complete Streets Guidebook includes some information that may be useful to 
incorporate into this plan. Also, since this is a Caltrans facility, Caltrans documents regarding 
state routes as main streets, complete streets and Caltrans’ Smart Mobility provide some 
information about the limitations and opportunities for state facilities. Other documents 
referred in the RFP (Task 2.2) would useful.  
 

4. Page A-5 mentions the establishment of a technical advisory group. However, that’s the only 
mention of it in the RFP. By the TAG, do you mean the project oversight team, or do you 
intend to set up a separate group? And if a separate group, how often do you anticipate that it 
would meet, and what would be the expected extent of interaction between the consultant and 
the TAG? 
 
The project oversight team is just RTC, Caltrans Planning, County of Santa Cruz, METRO, 
and the consultant. 
 
The technical advisory group may include a few more agencies responsible for infrastructure, 
planning, and services in SLV, such as Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments 
(AMBAG), Cabrillo College, California Highway Patrol, Caltrans ADA Coordinator, 
Caltrans Operations, County Economic Development, County Sherriff, the Air District, SLV 
Unified School District, Water District, Health Services Agency, SLV fire departments, State 
Parks, specialized transportation providers, and others.   
 
We anticipate that there will be about three meetings with this group, where RTC staff will 
discuss information from the plan with the group. The consultant team may be expected to 
participate by phone if needed or appropriate.   
 

 
Questions Regarding Proposal Format 
 
5. Q: Page limit: Could you clarify which sections of the proposal document count toward the 

20-page limit and which do not? 
 
A: Consultants are encouraged to limit their proposals to 20 pages. This targeted page limit is 
focused on the consultant’s proposed work plan for implementing this project, as well as 
items 3-9 listed under Section D of the RFP. References, Exceptions and Deviations, 
Required Forms, examples of past projects and graphics could be included as appendices and 
not be considered as part of the 20 pages.  
 

6. Cost proposal: We plan to submit a cost proposal that includes a detailed budget for each 
task, as requested in the RFP. However, the sample cost proposal included in the RFP as 
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Attachment B does not allow for a breakdown by task. Is your intention that Attachment B be 
submitted at this time along with the more detailed budget? 
 
A: Proposals should include a detailed budget for each task and related deliverables in 
addition to Attachment B. Attachment B is a sample method for summarizing costs for 
hourly labor rates, pay increases that may be anticipated, benefits, indirect costs, fees, fixed 
profit and other direct costs set by Caltrans.  
 

7. Is $150,000 the maximum amount available for consultant work for this project? 
 
A: This is a Caltrans grant funded project and additional grant funds are not available for this 
project. $150,000 is the amount budgeted for consultant work; however proposers may 
identify a lower or higher amount as the cost. The review team will consider the proposal 
cost in relation to the proposed work plan. Consultants are encouraged to include a 
breakdown of costs within a $150,000 budget and identify the scope of any tasks which the 
consultant team would propose minimizing or expanding. If the proposals from consultants 
require greater than the budgeted amount to complete the scope of work specified in the RFP, 
RTC may evaluate if some other tasks associated with this grant project could be reduced.  
 

8. Is this meant to be a DBE setaside procurement? If it is an open solicitation, is there a goal or 
preference for DBE participation? 
 
A: This is an open solicitation. There is no DBE set-aside or goal for this contract, however 
the RTC strongly encourages disadvantaged businesses (DBEs) to submit proposals and for 
prime contractors to include DBEs as subcontractors in their proposals. Caltrans’ Office of 
Business & Economic Opportunity webpage (http://www.dot.ca.gov/obeo/index.html) 
includes a database of DBE firms and information on how to register as a DBE firm in 
California. RTC emailed the RFP solicitation notice to over 500 DBEs listed as Work Code 
C8700 in Caltrans DBE database. Proposals must include Attachment D2: Consultant 
Proposal DBE Commitment, even if DBEs will not be participating in this project.  

 
 

Additional information on this RFP is online at: http://sccrtc.org/about/opportunities/rfp/.   
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